VIRGINIA BOARD OF NURSING MINUTES July 17, 2019 PANEL A

TIME AND PLACE: The meeting of the Virginia Board of Nursing was called to order at 10:30

A.M. on July 17, 2019 in Board Room 2, Department of Health

Professions, 9960 Mayland Drive, Suite 201, Henrico, Virginia.

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

Louise Hershkowitz, CRNA, MSHA, President

Margaret Friedenberg, Citizen Member

Trula Minton, MS, RN

Dixie McElfresh, LPN – joined the meeting at 9:23 A.M.

Mark Monson, Citizen Member Cynthia Swineford, MSN, RN, CNE

STAFF PRESENT: Robin Hills, DNP, RN, WHNP, Deputy Executive Director

Terri Clinger, DNP, MSN, CPNP-PC, Deputy Executive Director for

Advanced Practice

Patricia Dewey, RN, BSN, Discipline Case Manager

Darlene Graham, Senior Discipline Specialist

OTHERS PRESENT: James Rutkowski, Assistant Attorney General, Board Counsel

ESTABLISHMENT OF A PANEL:

With five members of the Board present, a panel was established.

CONSIDERATION OF AGENCY SUBORDINATE RECOMMENDATIONS:

#5 – Tiffany Brooke Harmon, RMA 0031-010869

Ms. Harmon appeared and was accompanied by Scott Gordon, Esq.

CLOSED MEETING: Mr. Monson n

Mr. Monson moved that the Board of Nursing convene a closed meeting pursuant to §2.2-3711(A)(27) of the *Code of Virginia* at 9:12 A.M., for the purpose of consideration of the agency subordinate recommendation regarding Ms. Harmon. Additionally, Mr. Monson moved that Dr. Hills, Dr. Clinger, Ms. Dewey, Ms. Graham and Mr. Rutkowski, Board counsel, attend the closed meeting because their presence in the closed meeting is deemed necessary and their presence will aid the Board in its

deliberations. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

RECONVENTION: The Board reconvened in open session at 9:20 A.M.

Ms. Swineford moved that the Board of Nursing certify that it heard, discussed or considered only public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act and only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by which the closed meeting was convened. The motion was

seconded and carried unanimously.

Virginia Board of Nursing
PANEL A – Agency Subordinate Recommendations and Consent Orders
July 17, 2019

Mr. Monson moved that the Board of Nursing accept the recommended decision of the agency subordinate to suspend the registration of Tiffany Brooke Harmon to practice as a medication aide in the Commonwealth of Virginia for a period of not less than one year form the date of entry of the Order. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

Ms. McElfresh joined the meeting at 9:23 A.M.

CLOSED MEETING:

Mr. Monson moved that the Board of Nursing convene a closed meeting pursuant to §2.2-3711(A)(27) of the *Code of Virginia* at 9:29 A.M., for the purpose of consideration of the remaining agency subordinate recommendations. Additionally, Mr. Monson moved that Dr. Hills, Dr. Clinger, Ms. Dewey, Ms. Graham and Mr. Rutkowski, Board counsel, attend the closed meeting because their presence in the closed meeting is deemed necessary and their presence will aid the Board in its deliberations. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

RECONVENTION:

The Board reconvened in open session at 10:04 A.M.

Ms. Swineford moved that the Board of Nursing certify that it heard, discussed or considered only public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act and only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by which the closed meeting was convened. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

#1 – Crystal Lynn Brewer, LPN 0002-056460

Ms. Brewer did not appear.

Ms. McElfresh moved that the Board of Nursing accept the recommended decision of the agency subordinate to suspend the license of Crystal Lynn Brewer to practice practical nursing in the Commonwealth of Virginia with the suspension stayed upon proof of Ms. Brewer's entry into the Virginia Health Practitioners' Monitoring Program (HPMP) and remaining in compliance with all terms and conditions of the HPMP for the period specified by the HPMP. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

#3 – Shenika Lewis Poe, RN

0001-240704

Ms. Lewis Poe did not appear.

Ms. McElfresh moved that the Board of Nursing accept the recommended decision of the agency subordinate to require Shenika Lewis Poe to provide written proof satisfactory to the Board of successful completion of the NCSBN course "Documentation: A Critical Aspect of Client Care" within 90 days from the date of entry of the Order. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

#7 – Tasha Nicole Strickler Fomby, CNA 1401-149654

Ms. Fomby did not appear.

Mr. Monson moved that the Board of Nursing accept the recommended decision of the agency subordinate to indefinitely suspend the certificate of Tasha Nicole Strickler Fomby to practice as a nurse aide in the Commonwealth of Virginia. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

#9 – Savannah Cash, CNA

1401-185265

Ms. Cash did not appear.

Mr. Monson moved that the Board of Nursing modify the recommended decision of the agency subordinate to suspend the right of Savannah Cash to renew her certificate to practice as a nurse aide in the Commonwealth of Virginia. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

#11 – Michelle Morris Collier, LPN

0002-052519

Ms. Collier did not appear.

Mr. Monson moved that the Board of Nursing accept the recommended decision of the agency subordinate to reprimand Michelle Morris Collier and to require her within 90 days from the date of entry of the Order to provide written proof satisfactory to the Board of successful completion of the NCSBN online courses:

Documentation: A Critical Aspect of Client Care; Professional Accountability and Legal Liability for Nurses; and Sharpening Critical Thinking Skills

The motion was seconded and carried with five votes in favor of the motion. Ms. Hershkowitz opposed the motion.

#13 – Victoria Ann Tully, RN

0001-274218

Virginia Board of Nursing
PANEL A – Agency Subordinate Recommendations and Consent Orders
July 17, 2019

Ms. Tully did not appear.

Ms. McElfresh moved that the Board of Nursing accept the recommended decision of the agency subordinate to indefinitely suspend the license of Victoria Ann Tully to practice professional nursing in the Commonwealth of Virginia with suspension stayed upon proof of Ms. Tully's entry into a Contract with the Virginia Health Practitioners' Monitoring Program (HPMP) and remaining in compliance with all terms and conditions of the HPMP for a period specified by the HPMP. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

#15 – Kathy Ann Merone, RN

0001-154765

Ms. Merone did not appear.

Ms. McElfresh moved that the Board of Nursing accept the recommended decision of the agency subordinate to reprimand Kathy Ann Merone and to indefinitely suspend her license to practice professional nursing in the Commonwealth of Virginia. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

#17 – Jamie Lynn Mawyer, RMA

0031-008910

Ms. Mawyer did not appear.

Ms. McElfresh moved that the Board of Nursing accept the recommended decision of the agency subordinate to assess Jamie Lynn Mawyer a monetary penalty of \$100.00 to be paid to the Board within 90 days from the date of entry of the Order. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

#19 – Neaola Faye Price, CNA

1401-157698

Ms. Price did not appear.

Ms. Minton moved that the Board of Nursing accept the recommended decision of the agency subordinate to reprimand Neaola Faye Price. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

Ms. Hardy did not appear.

Ms. McElfresh moved that the Board of Nursing accept the recommended decision of the agency subordinate to revoke the certificate of Tiffany Hardy to practice as a nurse aide in the Commonwealth of Virginia and to enter a Finding of Neglect against her in the Virginia Nurse Aide Registry. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

#21 – Kendra Monik Barrett, RMA

0031-004060

Ms. Barrett did not appear.

Ms. McElfresh moved that the Board of Nursing accept the recommended decision of the agency subordinate to indefinitely suspend the registration of Kendra Monik Barrett to practice as a medication aide in the Commonwealth of Virginia with suspension stayed upon proof of Ms. Barrett's entry into a Contract with the Virginia Health Practitioners' Monitoring Program (HPMP) and remaining in compliance with all terms and conditions of the HPMP for a period specified by the HPMP. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

#25 – Rusti Renee' Morgan, LPN

0002-084294

Ms. Morgan did not appear.

Ms. Minton moved that the Board of Nursing accept the recommended decision of the agency subordinate to take no action against Rusti Renee' Morgan at this time contingent upon proof of Ms. Morgan's entry into a Contract with the Virginia Health Practitioners' Monitoring Program (HPMP) and compliance with all terms and conditions of the HPMP for a period specified by the HPMP. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

#27 – Deborah Dunkley Pyles, LPN

0002-093262

Ms. Pyles did not appear.

Ms. Minton moved that the Board of Nursing accept the recommended decision of the agency subordinate to indefinitely suspend the license of Deborah Dunkley Pyles to practice practical nursing in the Commonwealth of Virginia. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

Ms. Hall did not appear.

Ms. McElfresh moved that the Board of Nursing accept the recommended decision of the agency subordinate to accept the voluntary surrender for indefinite suspension of Sherly Anne Hall's right to renew her license to practice professional nursing in the Commonwealth of Virginia. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

#31 – Elisabeth Aguilar Murphy, RN

0001-218101

Ms. Murphy did not appear.

Ms. McElfresh moved that the Board of Nursing accept the recommended decision of the agency subordinate to suspend the license of Elisabeth Aguilar Murphy to practice professional nursing in the Commonwealth of Virginia with suspension stayed upon proof of Ms. Murphy's entry into a Contract with the Virginia Health Practitioners' Monitoring Program (HPMP) and remaining in compliance with all terms and conditions of the HPMP for a period specified by the HPMP. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

#33 – Anju Prasad, RN

0001-278837

Ms. Prasad did not appear but submitted a written response.

Ms. Minton moved that the Board of Nursing accept the recommended decision of the agency subordinate to indefinitely suspend the license of Anju Prasad to practice professional nursing in the Commonwealth of Virginia with suspension stayed upon proof of Ms. Prasad's entry into a Contract with the Virginia Health Practitioners' Monitoring Program (HPMP) and remaining in compliance with all terms and conditions of the HPMP for a period specified by the HPMP. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT ORDERS:

G1 – Maggie Marie Ragusa, RN

0001-237635

Mr. Monson moved to accept the consent order to indefinitely suspend the license of Maggie Marie Ragusa to practice professional nursing in the Commonwealth of Virginia. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

G3 – Laura Elizabeth Jones, RN

0001-203087

Virginia Board of Nursing
PANEL A – Agency Subordinate Recommendations and Consent Orders
July 17, 2019

Mr. Monson moved to accept the consent order to suspend the license of Laura Elizabeth Jones to practice professional nursing in the Commonwealth of Virginia with suspension stayed upon proof of Ms. Jones' re-entry into a Contract with the Virginia Health Practitioners' Monitoring Program (HPMP) and compliance with all terms and conditions of the HPMP for a period specified by the HPMP. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

G5 – Colin Brett Weigel, RN

0001-250234

Mr. Monson moved to accept the consent order to take no action against Colin Brett Weigel at this time contingent upon Mr. Weigel's continued compliance with all terms and conditions of his Contract with the Virginia Health Practitioners' Monitoring Program (HPMP) and any subsequent Contracts for the period specified in the Contract. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

ADJOURNMENT:

The Board adjourned at 10:13 A.M.

Robin L. Hills, DNP, RN, WHNP Deputy Executive Director

VIRGINIA BOARD OF NURSING FORMAL HEARINGS July 17, 2019 PANEL A

TIME AND PLACE: The meeting of the Virginia Board of Nursing was called to order at 10:30

A.M. on July 17, 2019 in Board Room 2, Department of Health

Professions, 9960 Mayland Drive, Suite 201, Henrico, Virginia.

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

Louise Hershkowitz, CRNA, MSHA, President

Margaret Friedenberg, Citizen Member

Trula Minton, MS, RN Dixie McElfresh, LPN

Mark Monson, Citizen Member Cynthia Swineford, MSN, RN, CNE

Kristina Page, LMT – joined the meeting at 2:15 P.M.

STAFF PRESENT: Robin Hills, DNP, RN, WHNP, Deputy Executive Director

Terri Clinger, DNP, RN, CPNP-PC, Deputy Executive Director for

Advanced Practice

Patricia Dewey, RN, BSN, Discipline Case Manager

Darlene Graham, Senior Discipline Specialist

OTHERS PRESENT: James Rutkowski, Assistant Attorney General, Board Counsel

ESTABLISHMENT OF A PANEL:

With six members of the Board present, a panel was established.

FORMAL HEARINGS: Wakeisha De-nay Culler, LPN 0002-084406

Ms. Culler did not appear.

Holly Walker, Adjudication Specialist for the Department of Health Professions, represented the Commonwealth. Mr. Rutkowski was legal counsel for the Board. Cindy Ferrell, court reporter with Farnsworth &

Taylor Reporting LLC, recorded the proceedings.

David Robinson, Senior Investigator, Department of Health Professions, Asnoviati Main, CNA at Beth Sholom Assisted Living Facility, Tanesha McKeithan, CNA formerly at Beth Sholom Assisted Living Facility, and Patricia Thompson, RN, Administrator at Beth Sholom Assisted Living

Facility, were present and testified.

CLOSED MEETING: Mr. Monson moved that the Board of Nursing convene a closed meeting

> pursuant to §2.2-3711(A)(7) of the Code of Virginia at 10:32 A.M., for consultation with legal counsel in the matter of Ms. Culler. Additionally, Mr. Monson moved that Dr. Hills, Dr. Clinger, Ms. Dewey, Ms. Graham and Mr. Rutkowski, Board counsel, attend the closed meeting because their presence in the closed meeting is deemed necessary and their

presence will aid the Board in its deliberations. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

RECONVENTION:

The Board reconvened in open session at 10:45 A.M.

Ms. Swineford moved that the Board of Nursing certify that it heard, discussed or considered only public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act and only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by which the closed meeting was convened. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

CLOSED MEETING:

Mr. Monson moved that the Board of Nursing convene a closed meeting pursuant to §2.2-3711(A)(27) of the *Code of Virginia* at 11:45 A.M., for the purpose of deliberation to reach a decision in the matter of Ms. Culler. Additionally, Mr. Monson moved that Dr. Hills, Dr. Clinger, Ms. Dewey, Ms. Graham and Mr. Rutkowski, Board counsel, attend the closed meeting because their presence in the closed meeting is deemed necessary and their presence will aid the Board in its deliberations. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

RECONVENTION:

The Board reconvened in open session at 12:08 A.M.

Ms. Swineford moved that the Board of Nursing certify that it heard, discussed or considered only public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act and only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by which the closed meeting was convened. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

Ms. Friedenberg moved that the Board of Nursing accept the findings of fact and conclusions of law as presented and amended by the Board. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

ACTION:

Ms. Minton moved that the Board of Nursing revoke the license of Wakeisha De-nay Culler to practice practical nursing in the Commonwealth of Virginia. An Order will be issued of the findings of fact and conclusions of law. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

This decision shall be effective upon the entry by the Board of a written Order stating the findings, conclusions, and decision of this formal hearing panel.

FORMAL HEARINGS: Jimequa Kierra Chiles, CNA 1401-167929

Ms. Chiles appeared and was accompanied by friends, LaShelle Robinson and Tatiana Mayfield.

Tammie Jones, Adjudication Specialist for the Department of Health Professions, represented the Commonwealth. Mr. Rutkowski was legal counsel for the Board. Cindy Ferrell, court reporter with Farnsworth & Taylor Reporting LLC, recorded the proceedings.

Sarah Rogers, Senior Investigator, Department of Health Professions, Stacie Shive, LNHA, Elizabeth Adam Crump Nursing and Rehab Center, Ms. Robinson and Ms. Mayfield were present and testified.

CLOSED MEETING:

Mr. Monson moved that the Board of Nursing convene a closed meeting pursuant to §2.2-3711(A)(27) of the *Code of Virginia* at 1:11 P.M., for the purpose of deliberation to reach a decision in the matter of Ms. Chiles. Additionally, Mr. Monson moved that Dr. Hills, Dr. Clinger, Ms. Dewey, Ms. Graham and Mr. Rutkowski, Board counsel, attend the closed meeting because their presence in the closed meeting is deemed necessary and their presence will aid the Board in its deliberations. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

RECONVENTION:

The Board reconvened in open session at 1:33 P.M.

Ms. Swineford moved that the Board of Nursing certify that it heard, discussed or considered only public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act and only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by which the closed meeting was convened. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

Ms. Friedenberg moved that the Board of Nursing accept the findings of fact and conclusions of law as presented and amended by the Board. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

ACTION:

Ms. McElfresh moved that the Board of Nursing reprimand Jimequa Kierra Chiles and approve her application for reinstatement of her certificate to practice as a nurse aide in the Commonwealth of Virginia. An Order will be issued regarding the findings of fact and conclusions of law. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

This decision shall be effective upon the entry by the Board of a written Order stating the findings, conclusions, and decision of this formal hearing panel.

ACTION:

RECESS: The Board recessed at 1:40 P.M.

RECONVENTION: The Board reconvened in open session at 2:15 P.M.

Ms. Page joined the meeting at 2:15 P.M.

FORMAL HEARINGS: Kelly Christina Crowell, LMT Applicant

Ms. Crowell appeared and was accompanied by Taylor Thomas.

Grace Stewart, Adjudication Specialist for the Department of Health Professions, represented the Commonwealth. Mr. Rutkowski was legal counsel for the Board. Cindy Ferrell, court reporter with Farnsworth &

Taylor Reporting LLC, recorded the proceedings.

CLOSED MEETING: Mr. Monson moved that the Board of Nursing convene a closed meeting

> pursuant to §2.2-3711(A)(27) of the Code of Virginia at 2:58 P.M., for the purpose of deliberation to reach a decision in the matter of Ms. Alston. Additionally, Mr. Monson moved that Dr. Hills, Dr. Clinger, Ms. Dewey, Ms. Graham and Mr. Rutkowski, Board counsel, attend the closed meeting because their presence in the closed meeting is deemed necessary and their presence will aid the Board in its deliberations. The motion was seconded

and carried unanimously.

RECONVENTION: The Board reconvened in open session at 3:26 P.M.

> Ms. Swineford moved that the Board of Nursing certify that it heard, discussed or considered only public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act and only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by which the closed meeting was convened. The motion was

seconded and carried unanimously.

Ms. McElfresh moved that the Board of Nursing accept the findings of fact and conclusions of law as presented and amended by the Board. The

motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

Mr. Monson moved that the Board of Nursing deny the application of Kelly Christina Crowell to practice massage therapy in the Commonwealth of Virginia. An Order will be issued regarding the

findings of fact and conclusions of law. The motion was seconded and

carried unanimously.

This decision shall be effective upon the entry by the Board of a written Order stating the findings, conclusions, and decision of this formal hearing

panel.

FORMAL HEARINGS: Dwayne Pittman, LMT 0019-009513

Mr. Pittman did not appear.

Grace Stewart, Adjudication Specialist for the Department of Health Professions, represented the Commonwealth. Mr. Rutkowski was legal counsel for the Board. Cindy Ferrell,, court reporter with Farnsworth & Taylor Reporting LLC, recorded the proceedings.

Client A and Branna Holdren, Costmetologist at Victoria Day Spa, were present and testified.

CLOSED MEETING: Mr. monson moved that the Board of Nursing convene a closed meeting

pursuant to §2.2-3711(A)(27) of the *Code of Virginia* at 4:10 P.M., for the purpose of deliberation to reach a decision in the matter of Mr. Pittman. Additionally, Mr. Monson moved that Dr. Hills, Dr. Clinger, Ms. Dewey, Ms. Graham and Mr. Rutkowski, Board counsel, attend the closed meeting because their presence in the closed meeting is deemed necessary and their presence will aid the Board in its deliberations. The motion was seconded

and carried unanimously.

RECONVENTION: The Board reconvened in open session at 4:16 P.M.

Ms. Swineford moved that the Board of Nursing certify that it heard, discussed or considered only public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act and only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by which the closed meeting was convened. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

Ms. Friedenberg moved that the Board of Nursing accept the findings of fact and conclusions of law as presented and amended by the Board. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

Ms. McElfresh moved that the Board of Nursing revoke the right of Dwayne Pittman to renew his license to practice as a massage therapist in the Commonwealth of Virginia. An Order will be issued regarding the findings of fact and conclusions of law. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

This decision shall be effective upon the entry by the Board of a written Order stating the findings, conclusions, and decision of this formal hearing panel.

Ms. Page left the meeting at 4:25 P.M.

ACTION:

FORMAL HEARINGS: 0001-249537 Barbara J. B. Volz, RN

Ms. Volz appeared.

Tammie Jones, Adjudication Specialist for the Department of Health Professions, represented the Commonwealth. Mr. Rutkowski was legal counsel for the Board. Cindy Ferrell,, court reporter with Farnsworth & Taylor Reporting LLC, recorded the proceedings.

Gayle Miller, Senior Investigator, Department of Health Professions, and Tonya James, Board of Nursing Compliance Case Manager, were present and testified.

CLOSED MEETING:

Mr. Monson moved that the Board of Nursing convene a closed meeting pursuant to §2.2-3711(A)(27) of the Code of Virginia at 6:07 P.M., for the purpose of deliberation to reach a decision in the matter of Ms. Volz. Additionally, Mr. Monson moved that Dr. Hills, Dr. Clinger, Ms. Dewey, Ms. Graham and Mr. Rutkowski, Board counsel, attend the closed meeting because their presence in the closed meeting is deemed necessary and their presence will aid the Board in its deliberations. The motion was seconded

and carried unanimously.

RECONVENTION: The Board reconvened in open session at 6:50 P.M.

> Ms. Swineford moved that the Board of Nursing certify that it heard, discussed or considered only public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act and only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by which the closed meeting was convened. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

> Ms. Friedenberg moved that the Board of Nursing accept the findings of fact and conclusions of law as presented and amended by the Board. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

> Ms. McElfresh moved that the Board of Nursing deny the application of Barbara J. B. Volz for reinstatement of her license to practice professional nursing in the Commonwealth of Virginia. An Order will be issued regarding the findings of fact and conclusions of law. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

> This decision shall be effective upon the entry by the Board of a written Order stating the findings, conclusions, and decision of this formal hearing panel.

ACTION:

Ms. Minton left the meeting at 6:56 P.M.

FORMAL HEARINGS: **Kyle Brandon Hill, RN**

0001-236785

Mr. Hill appeared.

Grace Stewart, Adjudication Specialist for the Department of Health Professions, represented the Commonwealth. Mr. Rutkowski was legal counsel for the Board. Cindy Ferrell,, court reporter with Farnsworth & Taylor Reporting LLC, recorded the proceedings.

Joyce Johnson and Steve Keene, Senior Investigators, Department of Health Professions, and Shelisa Cooper, former DON at Spotsylvania Regional Medical Center, were present and testified.

CLOSED MEETING:

Mr. Monson moved that the Board of Nursing convene a closed meeting pursuant to §2.2-3711(A)(27) of the *Code of Virginia* at 7:59 P.M., for the purpose of deliberation to reach a decision in the matter of Mr. Hill. Additionally, Mr. Monson moved that Dr. Hills, Dr. Clinger, Ms. Dewey, Ms. Graham and Mr. Rutkowski, Board counsel, attend the closed meeting because their presence in the closed meeting is deemed necessary and their presence will aid the Board in its deliberations. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

RECONVENTION:

The Board reconvened in open session at 8:35 P.M.

Ms. Swineford moved that the Board of Nursing certify that it heard, discussed or considered only public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act and only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by which the closed meeting was convened. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

Ms. Friedenberg moved that the Board of Nursing accept the findings of fact and conclusions of law as presented and amended by the Board. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

ACTION:

Mr. Monson moved that the Board of Nursing deny the application of Kyle Brandon Hill for reinstatement of his license to practice professional nursing in the Commonwealth of Virginia and continue his license on indefinite suspension with suspension stayed contingent upon his continued compliance with the Virginia Health Practitioners' Monitoring Program (HPMP). An Order will be issued regarding the findings of fact and conclusions of law. The motion was seconded and carried unanimously.

This decision shall be effective upon the entry by the Board of a written Order stating the findings, conclusions, and decision of this formal hearing

panel.

ADJOURNMENT: The Board adjourned at 8:40 P.M.

Robin L. Hills, DNP, RN, WHNP Deputy Executive Director